
 

 
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk  

   

Health and 
Social Care 
Select 
Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Councillor Nick Denys (Chair) 
Councillor Philip Corthorne (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Adam Bennett 
Councillor Tony Burles 
Councillor Reeta Chamdal 
Councillor June Nelson 
Councillor Sital Punja (Opposition Lead) 
 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 21 
FEBRUARY 2024 
 

 

Time: 6.30 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape.  
Please contact us for further 
information.  
 

  
Published: Tuesday, 13 February 2024 

 Contact: Nikki O'Halloran 
Email: nohalloran@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  

https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=421 

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/
https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=421


 

 

 
Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 

 

Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
An Induction Loop System is available for use 
in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 



 

 

Terms of Reference 
 

Health & Social Care Select Committee 
 
To undertake the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the following Cabinet Member 
portfolio(s) and service areas: 
 

Cabinet Member Portfolios  Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care 

Relevant service areas 1. Adult Social Work 
2. Adult Safeguarding 
3. Provider & Commissioned Care 
4. Public Health 
5. Health integration / Voluntary Sector 

 
Statutory Healthy Scrutiny 
This Committee will also undertake the powers of health scrutiny conferred by the Local 
Authority 
(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013. It will: 

 Work closely with the Health & Wellbeing Board & Local Healthwatch in respect of 
reviewing and scrutinising local health priorities and inequalities. 

 Respond to any relevant NHS consultations. 
 
Duty of partners to attend and provide information 
The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013, imposes duties on ‘responsible persons’ to provide a local authority with 
such information about the planning, provision and operation of health services in the area 
of the authority as it may reasonably require to discharge its health scrutiny functions 
through the Health & Social Care Select Committee. All relevant NHS bodies and health 
service providers (including GP practices and other primary care providers and any 
private, independent or third sector providers delivering services under arrangements 
made by clinical commissioning groups, NHS England or the local authority) have a duty to 
provide such information. Additionally, Members and employees of a relevant NHS body or 
relevant health service provider have a duty to attend before a local authority when 
required by it (provided reasonable notice has been given) to answer questions the local 
authority believes are necessary to carry out its health scrutiny functions. Further guidance 
is available from the Department of Health on information requests and attendance of 
individuals at meetings considering health scrutiny. 
 
Cross-cutting topics 
This Committee will also act as lead select committee on the monitoring and review of the 
following cross-cutting topics: 

• Domestic Abuse services and support 
 



 

 

Agenda 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2024 1 - 12 
 

4 Exclusion of press and public  
 

5 Health Service Provision in Hillingdon's Rural Areas 13 - 14 
 

6 Cabinet Forward Plan Monthly Monitoring 15 - 24 
 

7 Work Programme 25 - 28 
 



 

 

Minutes 
 

 

HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE SELECT 
COMMITTEE 
 
23 January 2024 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre 
 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors Nick Denys (Chair), Philip Corthorne (Vice-Chair), Adam Bennett, 
Tony Burles, Reeta Chamdal, June Nelson and Sital Punja (Opposition Lead) 
 
Also Present: 
Clinton Beale, Stakeholder Engagement Manager (North West), London Ambulance 
Service 
Richard Ellis, Joint Lead Borough Director, North West London Integrated Care System 
(NWL ICS) 
Vanessa Odlin, Managing Director for Hillingdon and Mental Health Services, Goodall 
Division, Central and North West London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL) 
Dr Ritu Prasad, Chair, Hillingdon GP Confederation 
Derval Russell, Harefield Hospital Site Director, Royal Brompton and Harefield 
Hospitals - Guy's and St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust 
Keith Spencer, Managing Director, Hillingdon Health and Care Partners (HHCP) 
Lisa Taylor, Managing Director, Healthwatch Hillingdon 
Teresa Wirz, Head of Addictions Service, Central and North West London NHS 
Foundation Trust (CNWL) 
Patricia Wright, Chief Executive, The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 
LBH Officers Present:  
Andy Goodwin (Head of Strategic Finance), Jon Smith (Head of Finance - Adult Social 
Care) and Nikki O'Halloran (Democratic, Civic and Ceremonial Manager) 
 

39.     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 There were no apologies for absence. 
 

40.     DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2) 
 

 There were no declarations of interest in matters coming before this meeting.  
 

41.     MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21 NOVEMBER 2023  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2023 be 
agreed as a correct record.    
 

42.     EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 RESOLVED:  That all items of business be considered in public.   
 

43.     HEALTH UPDATES  (Agenda Item 5) 
 

 The Chair welcomed those present to the meeting.   
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  

 

Healthwatch Hillingdon (HH) 
Ms Lisa Taylor, Managing Director at Healthwatch Hillingdon (HH), advised that more 
than 250 residents had contacted the organisation’s information and signposting 
service or provided feedback during the second and third quarter of 2023/2024.  A new 
reporting system had been developed and implemented.  The majority of enquiries had 
been related to primary care, specifically access to services, which had remained 
consistent over the past few years.  There had also been a significant number of 
contacts in relation to hospital and acute care, encompassing issues like booking blood 
test appointments and guiding individuals to the Patient Advice and Liaison Service 
(PALS). 
 
Concerns raised by residents had included long wait times, inadequate responses to 
complaints and challenges in keeping family and friends informed about inpatient 
progress.  There had been a noticeable increase in enquiries related to community 
mental health services and transportation issues for those with mobility difficulties.   
 
Social care issues had also seen an uptick, prompting the need for further examination.  
Although the number of contacts received in relation to social care issues had been 
increasing, there had been no identifiable theme to these contacts so a more detailed 
investigation would be needed.   
 
Ms Taylor noted that there had been a decrease in dental care inquiries, which could 
indicate that there had been an improvement in accessing NHS appointments locally.  
It was suggested that there might also have been an increase in awareness that 
individuals could seek dental care beyond their local areas.   
 
Digital outreach had been expanding through HH’s Facebook and Instagram pages.  
Five new volunteers had been recruited in the last six months, which had meant that 
the support available for community outreach and social media communications had 
been expanded.  There had been ongoing efforts in relation to community engagement 
and research with seven community sessions being held involving around 170 people 
(41 people had been referred to their GP for further investigations in relation to 
hypertension as a result of this engagement).  Visits had also been made to Hillingdon 
Hospital and Harefield Hospital to gain a patient perspective on the environment and 
Ms Taylor had spoken with around 25 patients on mental health wards as part of an 
ongoing engagement initiative.   
 
Priorities for the next six months would include a focus on patient experience with the 
launch of a survey, access to GP appointments and the enhancement of community 
health and wellbeing sessions.  As access to primary care services had been most 
commonly raised by residents, it had been hoped that the survey would identify the 
barriers as well as what good access / practice looked like to then be able to break the 
feedback down for each GP practice. 
 
With regard to the feedback loop with service providers, Ms Taylor advised that she 
continued to attend strategic meetings with providers.   However, as HH started to 
collect more robust data with its new reporting system, it would be important to explore 
opportunities to share this information through a regular slot at these meetings. 
 
Royal Brompton and Harefield Hospitals (RBH) 
Mrs Derval Russell, Harefield Hospital Site Director at RBH (Guy’s and St Thomas’ 
NHS Foundation Trust), acknowledged that there had not been as much progress 
made with regard to elective recovery as would have been liked.  The junior doctor 

Page 2



  

 

strikes had impacted on emergency services which had then affected elective 
progress.  Despite challenges, there had been a downward trend in waiting lists.  
Different strategies had been investigated to maximise activity and regular weekend 
lists for thoracic and cancer surgery had been introduced to manage the demand.   
 
The targeted lung health check program had been introduced to identify lung cancer at 
earlier stages through screening using GP records and aiming to bring patients into 
treatment sooner.  This initiative was now being rolled out wider across London.  The 
heart attack centre was one of the busiest in London and had been meeting its 
performance targets, and efforts were underway to enhance emergency heart attack 
care.  Transplant activity at Harefield had dipped but there had been some 
improvement recently with a double lung and heart surgery undertaken at the hospital 
this week.   
 
Mrs Russell noted that RBH had continued to experience challenges with regard to 
recruitment, with difficulties in retaining staff such as cardiac physiologists and critical 
care nurses.  RBH had been working with universities and had introduced initiatives to 
address the career pathway to enable career progression.  The shortage of critical care 
nurses had impacted on operations and surgeries but recruitment efforts had 
decreased the number of vacancies from 26 to 15.  It was noted that a large 
percentage of staff had left to relocate outside of London for more affordable housing.  
Career progression had been highlighted as the other main reason for staff leaving the 
Trust but this had also been affected by the impact of COVID-19 on staff profiles, 
retirements and personal work-life balance evaluations. 
 
A new electronic patient records (EPR) system had been introduced which would 
benefit research and performance.   The critical care transformation programme had 
been in place for twelve months and had been able to identify and address different 
blockages in the system at the same time.   
 
Capital investment continued to be a challenge, particularly in the context of the 
condition of buildings.  Options would be considered over the next twelve months for 
initiatives to replace the portacabins with brick buildings and the provision of 
replacement equipment through private funding.   
 
Mrs Russell advised that the Head of Patient Engagement had been talking to patients 
to get feedback on their experiences.  Matrons had also been playing this informal 
quality checker role.  Patient representatives had been involved on various committees 
and this had worked well with regard to transplant patients – effort was therefore being 
made to mimic this success in other services. 
 
London Ambulance Service (LAS) 
Mr Clinton Beale, Stakeholder Engagement Manager at LAS, advised that the 
transition to a teams based working model for paramedics had been working well and 
was being rolled out across the 70 London stations.  Face-to-face briefings with 
supervisors continued to be available to staff and had resulted in improved 
communication.  The dissemination of information to staff across multiple ambulance 
stations continued to be a challenge which reinforced the importance of the weekly 
meetings with supervisors.   
 
The LAS staff survey had been undertaken, receiving its highest ever return – it was 
hoped that this would highlight positive work that had been undertaken.  Staff morale 
appeared to have improved, which might have been as a result of them being better 

Page 3



  

 

informed, supported and engaged.   
 
Staff retention in Hillingdon was currently good.  There had been positive 
developments in staff engagement and support, and investment in the development of 
staff and junior managers.  There had been improvements in mid range career 
opportunities and consideration was currently being given to the provision of contracts 
which allowed staff to rotate around different services such as the 999 and 111 service.   
 
A 45 minute handover procedure had been implemented at Hillingdon Hospital which 
had been working well.  This had been made possible through a lot of hard work by the 
LAS and the Hospital and had resulted in a significant reduction in waiting times.   
 
The introduction of a feedback app (My Clinical App) had allowed paramedics to view 
the treatment given to patients at hospitals after they had been handed over.  This had 
enabled better informed decision making in subsequent cases with a positive impact on 
patient care and paramedic development.  The EPR systems being used by partners 
supported the app.   
 
The LAS had taken part in Hillingdon’s annual resilience exercise and the contract with 
RAF paramedics had been reviewed and updated to provide additional clinical support 
within the community.   
 
It was recognised that a proportion of the calls that came through to the LAS were not 
in relation to an emergency.  Mr Beale advised that triage systems were in place for 
managing calls which were directed through to alternative care such as pharmacies 
and GP appointments where appropriate.  Senior clinicians / consultant level staff were 
also being brought into the control room to help with patients with more complex needs.  
The Universal Care Plan had also enabled LAS staff to access comprehensive 
information about a patient on site.   
 
Mr Beale advised that the Right Care Right Place initiative had been introduced in 
September 2023.  NHS England had been providing mental health teams with 
guidance about what the LAS would / would not be doing but the LAS continued to 
provide support.   
 
Central and North West London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL) 
Ms Vanessa Odlin, Managing Director – Goodall Division at CNWL, advised that the 
Rapid Response Team had being doing well with regard to the 2 hour response time 
and occupancy at the Retreat crisis house had averaged at about 70%, with a median 
stay of 10 days (which met the intended objective).  The Retreat service provided 
support for individuals dealing with addiction and mental health issues.  An evaluation 
of the Retreat was now being undertaken to quantify the positive impact that it had had 
as funding for the initiative was due to end in April.  As the initiative had diverted 
patients from A&E, CNWL had been working with colleagues from North West London 
Integrated Care Board (NWL ICB) to identify funding for the continuation of the service.  
Consideration was also being given to the provision of a similar service for younger 
client groups.   
 
As CNWL had been using its own funds to support the Retreat, concerns were raised 
about the funding and sustainability of the service beyond April 2024.  Ms Odlin 
assured Members that efforts were being made to gather data on the service's 
effectiveness to present a strong case for continued funding. 
 

Page 4



  

 

Progress in meeting targets for children and young people's mental health services had 
shown a notable reduction in wait times both for initial appointments and treatment 
assessments.  Currently, 49 children and young people were waiting for their first 
appointment (down from 200) and 167 were waiting for treatment after their first 
appointment.  Ms Odlin would provide Members with further information to establish 
whether or not there had been a reduction in the total number of referrals that were 
rejected by Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS).   
 
Funding had been secured from NHS England for mental health support in schools 
from September 2024.  It was noted that there were some mental health clinicians that 
were already linked to schools’ mental health teams.  However, they were not in all 
schools – Ms Odlin would provide the Committee with a list of schools and identify 
which ones were currently working with the mental health professionals and which 
ones were not.  The importance of early intervention and support for children and 
young people was acknowledged but concerns were raised about the permanence and 
coverage of the service.  It was agreed that planning and recruitment needed to start 
ahead of the funding allocation in September.  Members asked that they be provided 
with an update once this service was fully operational.   
 
Progress had been made so that the IAPT target (Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies) was now being met and an eating disorders day hospital for adolescents 
aged 13 to 18 had been opened to provide intensive support for both patients and their 
families through a six week intensive programme.  An evaluation of the latter would be 
undertaken later in the year.  
 
Other work had included efforts to integrate palliative care teams across Hillingdon, 
with a focus on improving patient and family experiences.  There had been challenges 
with the delivery of, and access to, the wellbeing bus pilot programme which had been 
set up for the Heathrow Villages.  A meeting would be set up with local residents to 
undertake an evaluation of the situation.   
 
Members raised concerns about the coverage and reliability of the wellbeing bus 
service during the pilot period.  Although it had been agreed that the bus would be 
available to residents from 10am to 4pm on one day each week in a different village, 
this had not happened.  Plans for evaluating the trial period and gathering feedback 
from residents were discussed, and it was noted that consideration would need to be 
given to finding a robust solution that identified and met the community's needs.   
 
It was noted that the Select Committee would be looking at the provision of health 
services in the rural areas of the Borough at its meeting on 21 February 2024.  This 
meeting would specifically look at the services provided in Heathrow Villages and 
Harefield.   
 
Ms Teresa Wirz, Head of Addictions Service at CNWL, advised that Hillingdon had 
been successful in securing grant funding to support its engagement and retention of 
clients and for its work with ex offenders regarding addictions.  The Borough had been 
ranked second highest in London in relation to new admissions and in the top quarter 
for successful completions.  Effort had been made to address clients' physical health 
needs, including liver and lung screenings, along with the achievement of hepatitis C 
micro-elimination ahead of the NHS England target for 2025.  Collaboration with 
hepatology colleagues had been instrumental in achieving the micro-elimination goal. 
 
It was acknowledged that there were challenges associated with certain segments of 

Page 5



  

 

the community due to the stigma of addiction.  Work was also needed to address 
alcohol misuse, particularly amongst middle-aged women and alcohol related hospital 
admissions were still a concern.  Although the proportion of men misusing alcohol 
continued to be higher than for women (70/30), there had been a steady rise in the 
number of women.  Ms Wirz would provide Members with more detailed information in 
relation to the demographics.   
 
With regard to alcohol consumption trends, there had been a reported increase in the 
sale of low or no alcoholic drinks, particularly among younger generations.  Whilst there 
was optimism about potential changes in drinking habits, there was also recognition of 
the need for further data and analysis to understand the impact on addiction services. 
 
The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (THH) 
Ms Patricia Wright, Chief Executive at THH, advised that the Trust had made progress 
in delivering its business plan and there had been a focus on improving the quality of 
patient experience, particularly regarding language translation services.  Following 
concerns raised by residents in relation to communication, 24/7 language translation 
services were now offered to patients.  
 
Although handover times to the LAS had improved, the Trust continued to face 
challenges in relation to emergency performance and overcrowding in the Emergency 
Department (ED).  The Trust continued to work with Hillingdon Health and Care 
Partners (HHCP) to manage and improve the flow of patient discharges and 
improvements had been made in reducing the elective and diagnostic backlog.  Work 
was also needed in relation to outpatients.   
 
Ms Wright advised that the number of delayed discharges at Hillingdon Hospital was 
relatively low compared to other hospitals.  This had been largely due to collaborative 
efforts with social services and community partners to provide appropriate care 
packages for patients.  With regard to 7 day discharge, weekends continued to remain 
a challenge, and ongoing work was being undertaken to address the issue.  Part of the 
issue related to patients that were resident in other boroughs and the challenge of 
working with their social care teams to ensure that care packages were in place to be 
able to discharge them.   
 
The Care Quality Commission had introduced a new inspection regime which had 
started in January.  The new process would provide the opportunity for quicker rating 
adjustments based on specific service evaluations.  It was anticipated that Mount 
Vernon Hospital would be inspected during the current quarter.   
 
Ms Wright raised the issue of single sex accommodation within the hospital, 
recognising the importance of privacy and dignity for patients.  She reassured the 
Committee that, even with outdated facilities, there were very few instances where 
sexes were mixed and that the Trust adhered to the guidance provided about the 
matter, letting patients know if this happened.  It was noted that single sex 
accommodation did not include the ED or critical care. 
 
The number of patients seen in Accident and Emergency (A&E) within the 4 hour target 
period, had been dropping and had impacted on the patients that were most in need.  
Actions put in place to address this had included redirecting patients to appropriate 
services but the impact had not yet been seen.   
 
To reduce the number of patients attending A&E inappropriately, the Urgent Treatment 

Page 6



  

 

Centre (UTC) had been placed at the front door and triaged approximately 50% of 
patients out of the ED.  The UTC could signpost patients back to their GPs, to Hubs or 
other services.  There were also bookable services at Mount Vernon Hospital (which 
also provided telephone advice).   
 
A new electronic patient record system (Cerner) had been implemented at the Trust.  
This system had been introduced across all of the acute hospitals in NWL to enable all 
clinicians to see patients’ records.  As the system had already been installed in some 
other Trusts, THH had been learning from their experience.  It was confirmed that 
patients would have access to their records, but that there were concerns about 
patients being able to access their test results on the system before they had had their 
consultation with a clinician.  The Trust aimed to optimise the system through 
standardising clinical pathways and improving communication. 
 
It was noted that Trust staff would often say that working environment at THH was like 
a family and that it was a nice place to work.  However, responses to the staff survey 
had indicated that a lower than expected number of staff would recommend Hillingdon 
Hospital as a good place to work or receive treatment.  To get to the root of this, a staff 
networks had been developed and effort was being made to increase the survey 
response rate.  Effort was also being made to address concerns related to bullying and 
harassment and consideration was being given to the provision of more opportunities 
for personal development.   
 
Members raised concerns about the persistent issue of bullying and harassment at 
THH which had had a negative impact on staff retention and patient care and 
questioned the Trust’s efforts to address the root causes, build safe relationships with 
staff and encourage reporting.  Ms Wright advised that bullying occurred between staff 
and between staff and patients.  The hospital had implemented a zero-tolerance policy 
to bullying and harassment and had engaged a supportive team and conducted 
courses on de-escalation.  The Trust had a Freedom to Speak Up policy and 
encouraged staff to report concerns.  External investigators were brought in when 
needed, and efforts were being made to address the issue across the Trust.  It was 
hoped that the staff survey (due for publication in March 2024) would reflect an 
improvement in the situation.   
 
The staff vacancy rate had dropped, overseas recruitment had been undertaken and 
staff turnover was currently at about 12%.  It was noted that future recruitment would 
be undertaken to align with the turnover rate rather than the vacancies.   
 
Ms Wright provided an update on the Trust’s financial situation.  She explained that 
efforts had been directed towards efficiency and productivity, with a focus on reducing 
excess costs.  The hospital had succeeded in certain areas, such as recruiting actively 
to lower the vacancy rates, but challenges persisted, including increased bank and 
agency spending due to new services and staff undertaking Cerner training.  Plans for 
the upcoming year involved further efficiency improvements, in depth service reviews 
and exploring collaborations with other trusts.   
 
Mr Keith Spencer, Managing Director at HHCP, advised that THH was part of an 
integrated care system.  As such, out of hospital services needed to help reduce the 
demands on the hospital.   
 
Ms Wright advised that full planning permission had been granted for the new hospital 
development.  Decant and enabling works continued.   

Page 7



  

 

 
Hillingdon Health and Care Partners (HHCP) / North West London Integrated Care 
Board (NWL ICB) 
Mr Keith Spencer, Managing Director at HHCP, advised that the place partnership in 
Hillingdon had been strengthened by the Council playing a full role in the partnership.  
He noted that there had been three main priorities for 2023/2024:  

1. To develop a new place based operating model for health and care services;  
2. To commence the implementation of three key priority aspects of the new 

operating model for health and care services: 
a. 3 integrated and collocated multi agency Neighbourhood Teams 

anchored by 6 Primary Care Networks (PCNs) to focus on preventative 
work and improve access to urgent primary care;  

b. An Active Recovery Service; and  
c. A 24/7 Integrated End of Life Service; and  

3. To ensure best use of resources to address the Hillingdon health place based 
financial deficit.  

 
Fundamental changes were needed to the way that care was delivered, especially out-
of-hospital care, as the current system was deemed unfit for purpose.  It was proposed 
that a new care model and operating model be implemented to match service 
availability with how patients wanted to access services.   
 
Mr Spencer stressed the importance of making the money balance and to ensure that 
good care and quality care were cost-effective.  In the next twelve months, action 
would be taken to integrate 34 existing services into nine larger ones to break down 
barriers, improve patient focus and drive productivity opportunities.  Currently, there 
was a mismatch between when patients accessed services and the availability of out-
of-hospital services.  The plan would be to integrate services into superhubs to better 
match service availability with patient demand. 
 
It was noted that three collocated multi-agency Hubs were being implemented which 
would each comprise one superhub with one associated spoke hub.  The superhubs 
would have access to diagnostics and HHCP had worked closely with the Council to 
fast track the development of same day urgent care for superhubs.  The Hayes Hub 
(Mead House) had gone live in July 2023, the Ruislip Hub (Pembroke House) would be 
going live that week and it was anticipated that the Uxbridge Hub (Beaufort House) 
would go live in 2024/25 (the health centre would move here from the Uxbridge Medical 
Centre).  The integration of services into superhubs would provide additional primary 
care capacity of around 1.4m additional appointments in the Borough each year.   
 
It was noted that a lot of progress had been made in relation to the Hub model in a 
short space of time but concern was expressed regarding action being taken 
communicate these changes and educate the wider community to help them 
understand the new system and how to use services effectively.  Members were 
advised that consideration would be given to the terminology used and plans were in 
place for community events and engagement activities to address this.  
 
Members were advised that GPs, the UTC and 111 service were currently able to refer 
residents to the Hubs.  Consideration was being given to expanding this further at 
some point in the future.   
 
Mr Spencer advised that the Palliative Integrated Care Service (PICS) had gone live in 
November 2023.  The initiative had brought together staff from CNWL, Harlington 

Page 8



  

 

Hospice and the THH palliative care team to provide coordinated end of life care 
services.   
 
Mr Spencer noted that the clinical, management and administration teams were 
currently located in different buildings.  To improve placed based working and to be 
able to build better relationships with each other, as well as the residents that they 
served, these teams needed to be collocated. 
 
Concern was expressed with regard to patients’ access to GPs whereby residents 
ended up in long telephone queues which resulted in a high rate of lost calls (where the 
patient would often hang up and resort to calling emergency services).  Dr Ritu Prasad, 
Chair of Hillingdon GP Confederation, advised that Hillingdon practices had 
transitioned to a cloud-based telephony system, which had introduced a callback option 
to manage the overwhelming volume of calls (a medium sized surgery received around 
300-500 calls per day).  It was noted that effort was being made to streamline access 
to GPs through online platforms such as PATCHS, allowing digitally enabled 
individuals, particularly the younger population, to quickly address their healthcare 
needs without GP involvement.  The aim would be to divert non-urgent cases from GPs 
to Hubs, creating a more efficient and responsive system. 
 
A significant portion of calls to GPs were from people with no underlying conditions, 
seeking episodic care (around one third of calls).  The proposed Hub arrangement 
would aim to cater to this group more effectively, while those with underlying conditions 
requiring continuity of care would still be managed by GPs. 
 
Concern was expressed regarding the duplication of services among various groups 
and whether efforts had been made to bring specialised groups together or disband 
redundant ones.  Mr Spencer acknowledged that there was some overlap between 
different healthcare teams, and the goal would be to create a more flexible and efficient 
workforce by pooling resources. 
 
It was noted that there had been some challenges with getting GP and healthcare staff 
buy-in for such transformative changes due to the disruption of established workflows.  
Lessons had been learned from this process including the importance of engaging with 
frontline staff early on, ensuring they understood the reasons behind the changes, and 
providing a clear vision of the benefits for the people they served. 
 
RESOLVED:  That:  

1. Ms Odlin provide Members with further information on the trajectory of 
referrals that had been rejected by CAMHS;  

2. Ms Odlin provide the Committee with information on the schools currently 
working / not working with the mental health professionals;  

3. Ms Odlin provide the Committee with an update on the work undertaken by 
the mental health professionals in schools once the service was fully 
operational;  

4. Ms Wirz provide Members with more detailed information in relation to the 
demographics around alcohol misuse; and  

5. the discussion be noted.   
 

44.     2024/25 BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR SERVICES WITHIN THE REMIT OF HEALTH 
AND SOCIAL CARE SELECT COMMITTEE  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 The Chair thanked officers for attending the meeting.  Mr Andy Goodwin, the Council’s 
Head of Strategic Finance, introduced the report and noted that this was the officers’ 

Page 9



  

 

second appearance before the Health and Social Care Select Committee during this 
municipal year.  It was noted that the Council's revenue monitoring for 2023/24 
indicated a net underspend of £22,000 and that services within the Committee's remit 
were forecasted to underspend by £1 million, which had been attributed to staffing 
underspend due to recruitment difficulties. Adult social care placements had projected 
an overspend which would be funded by a one-off release from the balance sheet 
provisions. 
 
The medium-term financial forecast and the budget strategy had highlighted a saving 
requirement of £51m for 2028/29, with identified saving programmes of £33.4m, 
leaving a residual gap of £17.6m. Inflation, particularly in adult social care placements, 
had been a significant factor, contributing £48.1m to the budget gap within the 
Committee's remit. 
 
Mr Goodwin advised that service pressures were being forecast at approximately 
£24m, with demographic growth accounting for £4.6m and support for adult social care 
demand adding another £4.2m. Corporate items were adding around £14m to the 
saving requirement. 
 
The consultation budget had proposed a saving programme of £33.4m, with £15.8 
million required to balance the 2024/25 budget. Significant savings included £1m for 
mental health recovery and post-pandemic reablement. 
 
Of the proposed £218m capital budget, £20m sat within the Committee's remit and 
included a £1m investment in social care equipment and £6m for the Council to set up 
its own care home, supporting a saving of £550,000 per annum from 2025/26.  
Concern was expressed about the potential risks associated with purchasing a care 
home.  Mr Goodwin advised that, along with the reducing cost of energy, the cost 
drivers had showed a lower exposure than the open market and the Council had a low 
level of indebtedness. 
 
Health and Social Care was continuously looking to innovate and develop new ways of 
working and service provision to help manage pressures. This was evident in the 
savings within this area that were linked to investment in digital solutions - Members 
queried whether this would look and feel different in the future.  Mr Jon Smith, the 
Council’s Head of Finance - Adult Social Care, advised that the Medium Term Financial 
Forecast regarding the reablement programme looked to prevent costs of people 
coming into the service.  To prevent service users from seeing a diminished service, 
there would be a move to using more services such as Telecare and a focus on getting 
reablement services to residents as soon as possible.  A model was being developed 
to track the effectiveness of this support.   
 
Members queried how the demand for adult social care was increasing yet there had 
been a reduction in the associated budget.  Mr Goodwin advised that officers reported 
on demand led growth in the service separately to the savings.  Demand led growth 
had increased by £3m to account for demography and then the savings had been 
taken out to mitigate for front door pressures.   
 
The report stated that a 30% uplift in core Government grant would be needed to 
balance later years’ budgets.  Mr Goodwin advised that the local government sector 
had only received a settlement until 2024/25, and that there had been uncertainty 
about funding beyond that period.  Officers were waiting to see what would happen as 
75% of the Council’s funds came from Council Tax retention and 25% came from 

Page 10



  

 

Government grants.   
 
Members were advised that, although inflationary pressures had reduced, there was a 
bit of a lag in realising this reduction.  Demographic pressures had also been well 
managed during the year with innovative ideas being used to help manage the budget 
into the future.   
 
It was agreed that the Democratic, Civic and Ceremonial Manager be asked to draft 
and submit the Committee’s response to the budget proposals in consultation with the 
Chair and Labour Lead.   
 
RESOLVED:  That:  

1. the Democratic, Civic and Ceremonial Manager, in consultation with the 
Chair and Labour Lead, draft and submit the Committee’s response to the 
budget; and  

2. the report be noted.  
 

45.     SCRUTINY REVIEW OF THE CAMHS REFERRAL PATHWAY  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

 The Chair thanked Ms Lisa Taylor (Managing Director at Healthwatch Hillingdon) and 
Ms Vanessa Odlin (Managing Director – Goodall Division at Central and North West 
London NHS Foundation Trust) and her team for their contribution to the review of the 
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) referral pathway.  They, and the 
other witnesses involved in the review, had provided valuable insight into the subject 
matter.   
 
It was noted that the Committee had agreed the recommendations for the review at the 
previous meeting and were now considering the final report.  Members agreed that the 
report provided honest, action driven recommendations with a focus on improving 
communications.  It would be important to ensure that the Committee tracked the 
progress of the implementation of the recommendations with regular updates on 
tangible outcomes.  Ms Odlin assured Members of her commitment to taking the report 
back to her teams for implementation and emphasised the need to think beyond the 
services CNWL delivered, considering external organisations and collaborative efforts 
within the Hillingdon system.  She would report back to the Committee with updates 
during her regular attendance at meetings.   
 
Ms Taylor noted that this issue had been considered previously but that this time there 
seemed to be an increased investment in making positive changes and improvements 
to services.  She advised that she would be working on the Thrive mapping exercise 
over the next year and would be taking it forward with health professionals and 
voluntary sector services.   
 
If permission was given, it was agreed that the Thrive map be attached tp the final 
report.   
 
RESOLVED:  That:  

1. if permission was given, the Thrive map be attached to the final report; and  
2. the report be agreed.   

 

46.     HEALTH SCRUTINY AND THE NEW RECONFIGURATION ARRANGEMENTS  
(Agenda Item 8) 
 

 The Chair noted that the paper had effectively set out the purpose of the Committee's 

Page 11



  

 

work.  He stated that the second and last paragraphs provided excellent summaries 
which should be incorporated into the annual scrutiny report to articulate the 
Committee's mission. 
 
It was noted that the removal of the ability to refer matters to the Secretary of State 
would not practically alter the Committee's way of working as this had not previously 
been a power that could be effectively utilised.  Members suggested that the 
Committee's primary powers lay in compelling individuals to provide information and 
referring matters to regulators if necessary.  These powers were thought to be more 
practical and useful in the Committee's operations.  
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted.   
 

47.     CABINET FORWARD PLAN MONTHLY MONITORING  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

 Consideration was given to the Cabinet Forward Plan.   
 
RESOLVED:  That the Cabinet Forward Plan be noted.   
 

48.     WORK PROGRAMME  (Agenda Item 10) 
 

 Consideration was given to the Committee’s Work Programme.  It was agreed that the 
Democratic, Civic and Ceremonial Manager liaise with Mr Keith Spencer to arrange a 
visit to the Hub.   
 
At the meeting on 21 February 2024, it was agreed that, instead of just looking at GPs, 
Members discuss the provision of all primary care and health services (including GPs) 
in the rural areas of the Borough, specifically Heathrow Villages and Harefield.   
 
It was agreed that the meeting scheduled for 23 April 2024 be cancelled and 
rescheduled in May 2024 after the Annual Council meeting.  Members were asked to 
contact the Democratic, Civic and Ceremonial Manager with their availability.   
 
RESOLVED:  That:  

1. the Democratic, Civic and Ceremonial Manager liaise with Mr Spencer to 
arrange a visit to the Hub;  

2. the meeting on 21 February 2024 be extended to include the provision of 
all health services in Heathrow Villages and Harefield;  

3. the meeting on 23 April 2024 be cancelled and rescheduled in May 2024; 
and  

4. the Work Programme, as amended, be agreed. 
 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 6.30 pm, closed at 9.41 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Nikki O'Halloran on nohalloran@hillingdon.gov.uk.  
Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, officers, the press and members of the 
public. 

Page 12



 
Health and Social Care Select Committee – 21 February 2024 
Classification: Public 
 

HEALTH SERVICE PROVISION IN HILLINGDON’S RURAL AREAS 
 

Committee name  Health and Social Care Select Committee  

   

Officer reporting  Nikki O’Halloran, Democratic Services 

   

Papers with report  None  

 

Ward  All 

 

HEADLINES 
 
The attached paper provides a brief summary of progress with regard to the implementation of 
recommendations agreed by Cabinet on the following review: 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Health and Social Care Select Committee notes the information provided and 
provides comment, as appropriate.  
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
At the Health and Social Care Select Committee meeting on 23 January 2024, Members agreed 
that they would like to extend their single meeting review of GP services so that it covered all 
health services provided in Hillingdon’s rural areas, specifically Heathrow Villages and Harefield.  
Representatives from the following organisations have been invited to attend this meeting:  

 Hillingdon Health and Care Partners  

 Hillingdon GP Confederation  

 North West London Integrated Care Board (NWL ICB) 

 Healthwatch Hillingdon  

 Central and North West London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL) 
 
Services that Members would be interested to hear about include: 

 Dental 

 Pharmacy 

 Community 

 GPs 
 
Members would like to know: 

 what services are currently in place; 

 how residents’ needs in Heathrow Villages and Harefield are being met; and 

 what plans are in place to provide / develop service provision in the future.  
 
Implications on related Council policies 
 
The role of the Select Committees is to make recommendations on service changes and 
improvements to the Cabinet, who are responsible for the Council’s policy and direction. 
 
How this report benefits Hillingdon residents 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 
Select Committees directly engage residents in shaping policy and recommendations and the 
Committees seek to improve the way the Council provides services to residents. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None at this stage. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None at this stage. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
NIL. 

Page 14



Health and Social Care Select Committee – 21 February 2024 
Classification: Public 
 

CABINET FORWARD PLAN  
 

Committee name  Health and Social Care Select Committee 

   

Officer reporting  Nikki O’Halloran, Democratic Services  

   

Papers with report  Appendix A – Latest Forward Plan  

 

Ward  As shown on the Forward Plan 

 

HEADLINES 
 
To monitor the Cabinet’s latest Forward Plan which sets out key decisions and other decisions to 
be taken by the Cabinet collectively and Cabinet Members individually over the coming year. The 
report sets out the actions available to the Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Health and Social Care Select Committee notes the Cabinet Forward Plan. 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is published monthly, usually around the first or second week of each 
month. It is a rolling document giving the required public notice of future key decisions to be taken. 
Should a later edition of the Forward Plan be published after this agenda has been circulated, 
Democratic Services will update the Committee on any new items or changes at the meeting. 
 
As part of its Terms of Reference, each Select Committee should consider the Forward Plan and, 
if it deems necessary, comment as appropriate to the decision-maker on the items listed which 
relate to services within its remit.  For reference, the Forward Plan helpfully details which Select 
Committee’s remit covers the relevant future decision item listed. 
 
The Select Committee’s monitoring role of the Forward Plan can be undertaken in a variety of 
ways, including both pre-decision and post-decision scrutiny of the items listed. The provision of 
advance information on future items listed (potentially also draft reports) to the Committee in 
advance will often depend upon a variety of factors including timing or feasibility, and ultimately 
any such request would rest with the relevant Cabinet Member to decide. However, the 2019 
Protocol on Overview & Scrutiny and Cabinet Relations (part of the Hillingdon Constitution) does 
provide guidance to Cabinet Members to: 

 Actively support the provision of relevant Council information and other requests from the 
Committee as part of their work programme; and  

 Where feasible, provide opportunities for committees to provide their input on forthcoming 
executive reports as set out in the Forward Plan to enable wider pre-decision scrutiny (in 
addition to those statutorily required to come before committees, i.e. policy framework 
documents – see paragraph below). 

 
As mentioned above, there is both a constitutional and statutory requirement for Select 
Committees to provide comments on the Cabinet’s draft budget and policy framework proposals 
after publication. These are automatically scheduled in advance to multi-year work programmes. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Health and Social Care Select Committee – 21 February 2024 
Classification: Public 
 

Therefore, in general, the Committee may consider the following actions on specific items listed on the Forward Plan: 
 

 Committee action When How 
1 To provide specific 

comments to be 
included in a future 
Cabinet or Cabinet 
Member report on 
matters within its remit. 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee wishes 
to provide its influence and views on a particular matter within the formal report to 
the Cabinet or Cabinet Member before the decision is made. 
 
This would usually be where the Committee has previously considered a draft 
report or the topic in detail, or where it considers it has sufficient information 
already to provide relevant comments to the decision-maker. 

These would go within the standard section in 
every Cabinet or Cabinet Member report called 
“Select Committee comments”. 
 
The Cabinet or Cabinet Member would then 
consider these as part of any decision they 
make. 

2 To request further 
information on future 
reports listed under its 
remit. 
 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee wishes 
to discover more about a matter within its remit that is listed on the Forward Plan. 
 
Whilst such advance information can be requested from officers, the Committee 
should note that information may or may not be available in advance due to 
various factors, including timescales or the status of the drafting of the report itself 
and the formulation of final recommendation(s). Ultimately, the provision of any 
information in advance would be a matter for the Cabinet Member to decide. 

This would be considered at a subsequent 
Select Committee meeting. Alternatively, 
information could be circulated outside the 
meeting if reporting timescales require this. 
 
Upon the provision of any information, the Select 
Committee may then decide to provide specific 
comments (as per 1 above). 

3 To request the Cabinet 
Member considers 
providing a draft of the 
report, if feasible, for the 
Select Committee to 
consider prior to it being 
considered formally for 
decision. 

As part of its pre-decision scrutiny role, this would be where the Committee wishes 
to provide an early steer or help shape a future report to Cabinet, e.g., on a policy 
matter. 
 
Whilst not the default position, Select Committees do occasionally receive draft 
versions of Cabinet reports prior to their formal consideration. The provision of 
such draft reports in advance may depend upon different factors, e.g., the timings 
required for that decision. Ultimately any request to see a draft report early would 
need the approval of the relevant Cabinet Member. 

Democratic Services would contact the relevant 
Cabinet Member and Officer upon any such 
request. 
 
If agreed, the draft report would be considered 
at a subsequent Select Committee meeting to 
provide views and feedback to officers before 
they finalise it for the Cabinet or Cabinet 
Member. An opportunity to provide specific 
comments (as per 1 above) is also possible. 

4 To identify a 
forthcoming report that 
may merit a post-
decision review at a 
later Select Committee 
meeting 
 

As part of its post-decision scrutiny and broader reviewing role, this would be 
where the Select Committee may wish to monitor the implementation of a certain 
Cabinet or Cabinet Member decision listed/taken at a later stage, i.e., to review its 
effectiveness after a period of 6 months. 
 
The Committee should note that this is different to the use of the post-decision 
scrutiny ‘call-in’ power which seeks to ask the Cabinet or Cabinet Member to 
formally re-consider a decision up to 5 working days after the decision notice has 
been issued. This is undertaken via the new Scrutiny Call-in App members of the 
relevant Select Committee. 

The Committee would add the matter to its multi-
year work programme after a suitable time has 
elapsed upon the decision expected to be made 
by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member.  
 
Relevant service areas may be best to advise on 
the most appropriate time to review the matter 
once the decision is made.  
 
 

 

P
age 16



Health and Social Care Select Committee – 21 February 2024 
Classification: Public 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Protocol on Overview & Scrutiny and Cabinet relations adopted by Council 12 September 
2019 

 Scrutiny Call-in App 

Page 17

https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/documents/s46033/190912%20-%2005%20-%20Report%20of%20Head%20of%20Dem%20Services.pdf
https://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/documents/s46033/190912%20-%2005%20-%20Report%20of%20Head%20of%20Dem%20Services.pdf
https://apps.powerapps.com/play/cbc62b47-53ef-479e-a6b6-56d461595a4a?tenantId=aaacb679-c381-48fb-b320-f9d581ee948f


This page is intentionally left blank



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

202 Service Provision for 
victims and those 
affected by Domestic 
Abuse

Hillingdon Council commissions support services for victims of 
domestic abuse. The current contracts of the provision of 
refuge support services and therapeutic and counselling 
support for children and young people affected by domestic 
abuse both end in 2024. The Council needs to undertake a full 
assessment of the requirement for future services and 
therefore Cabinet Members be asked to review the existing 
contracts for a period of 1 year to maintain service provision, 
whilst that assessment is undertaken.

N/A Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader / Jane 
Palmer - Health 
& Social Care

Health & 
Social Care

P - Danielle Davis / 
Richard Webb

NEW 
ITEM

Private (3)

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC CS - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   CS - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC CS - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC CS - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

135b Award of contracts: 
short-term care home 
beds

Following a competitive tender to establish longer-term 
contractual arrangements to address the need for short-term 
care home beds for hospital discharge, Cabinet will consider 
awarding such contracts.

N/A Cllr Jane 
Palmer - Health 
& Social Care

Health & 
Social Care 

AS - Gary Collier Private (3)

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - February 2024

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 21 March 2024 (report deadline 4 March)

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - March 2024

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 18 April 2024 (report deadline 1 April)

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - April 2024

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

1

P
age 19



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services
SI Standard Items taken 

each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of decisions each month on 
standard items - details of these standard items are listed at 
the end of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

079 Carer Support 
Services 

Cabinet will consider a contract for Integrated Carer Support 
Services for adults and children. Such services support carers 
within the Borough, make it easier for them to access advice, 
information and support for the valued role they undertake.

N/A Cllr Jane 
Palmer - Health 
& Social Care

Health & 
Social Care 

AS / R - Sandra 
Taylor / Gavin 
Fernandez / Sally 
Offin

Private (3)

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of decisions each month on 
standard items - details of these standard items are listed at 
the end of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private matters to be considered later in Part 2 
of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All All C - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 23 May 2024 (report deadline 3 May)

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - May 2024

Cabinet meeting - 27 June 2024 (provisional)

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - June 2024

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 25 July 2024 (provisional)

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - July 2024

2

P
age 20



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI  Older People's Plan 
update

Cabinet will receive its yearly progress update on the Older 
People's Plan and the work by the Council and partners to 
support older residents and their quality of life.

All Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader of the 
Council / Cllr 
Jane Palmer - 
Health & Social 
Care

Health & 
Social Care

C - Sandra Taylor Older People, Leader's 
Initiative

Public  

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI The Annual Report Of 
Adult and Child 
Safeguarding 
Arrangements

This report provides the Cabinet with a summary of the activity 
undertaken by the Safeguarding Children Partnership Board 
and the Safeguarding Adults Board to address the identified 
local priorities. The Cabinet will consider this report and 
approve the activity and the local priorities for the two boards. 

All   Cllr Susan 
O'Brien - 
Children, 
Families & 
Education / Cllr 
Jane Palmer - 
Health & Social 
Care

Health & 
Social Care / 
Children, 
Families & 
Education

CS / AS - Alex 
Coman / Sandra 
Taylor

Select Committees Public  

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

AUGUST 2024 - NO CABINET MEETING

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 12 September 2024 (provisional) 

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - September 2024

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 10 October 2024 (provisional) 

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - October 2024

3

P
age 21



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services

SI Better Care Fund 
Section 75 Agreement

A standard annual report to Cabinet regarding the agreement 
under section 75 of the National Health Service Act, 2006, that 
will give legal effect to the Better Care Fund plan, including 
financial arrangements. The Better Care Fund supports local 
systems to successfully deliver the integration of health and 
social care in a way that supports person-centred care, 
sustainability and better outcomes for people and carers.

All Cllr Jane 
Palmer - Health 
& Social Care

Health & 
Social Care

AS - Sandra Taylor 
/ Gary Collier

Public  

SI Public Preview of 
matters to be 
considered in private

A report to Cabinet to provide maximum transparency to 
residents on the private and confidential matters to be 
considered later in Part 2 of the Cabinet meeting and agenda. 

TBC All Cabinet 
Members

All   C - Democratic 
Services 

Public  

SI Reports from Select 
Committees

Reports, findings and recommendations for consideration by 
the Cabinet, when referred from the appropriate Committee.

All All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public  

SI Standard Items taken 
each month by the 
Cabinet Member

Cabinet Members make a number of non-key decisions each 
month on standard items - details of these are listed at the end 
of the Forward Plan. 

Various All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Various Public  

SI Urgent Cabinet-level 
decisions & interim 
decision-making 
(including emergency 
decisions)

The Leader of the Council has the necessary authority to make 
decisions that would otherwise be reserved to the Cabinet, in 
the absence of a Cabinet meeting or in urgent circumstances. 
Any such decisions will be published in the usual way and 
reported to a subsequent Cabinet meeting for ratification. The 
Leader may also take emergency decisions without notice, in 
particular in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic, which will be 
ratified at a later Cabinet meeting.

Various Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader of the 
Council

TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

TBC Public / 
Private

SI Release of Capital 
Funds

The release of all capital monies requires formal Member 
approval, unless otherwise determined either by the Cabinet or 
the Leader. Batches of monthly reports (as well as occasional 
individual reports) to determine the release of capital for any 
schemes already agreed in the capital budget and previously 
approved by Cabinet or Cabinet Members

TBC Cllr Martin 
Goddard - 
Finance (in 
conjunction 
with relevant 
Cabinet 
Member)

All - TBC by 
decision 
made

various Corporate Finance Public but 
some 
Private 
(1,2,3)

SI Petitions about 
matters under the 
control of the Cabinet

Cabinet Members will consider a number of petitions received 
by local residents and organisations and decide on future 
action. These will be arranged as Petition Hearings.

TBC All TBC C - Democratic 
Services 

Public

CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS: Standard Items (SI) that may be considered each month

Cabinet meeting - Thursday 7 November 2024 (provisional)

Cabinet Member Decisions expected - November 2024

4

P
age 22



Ref

Scheduled 
Upcoming 
Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 
decision by 
Full Council

Cabinet 
Member(s) 
Responsible

Relevant 
Select 
Committee

Directorate / 
Lead Officer

Consultation related 
to the decision

NEW 
ITEM

Public or 
Private 
(with 
reason) 

SI = Standard Item each month/regularly     Council Directorates:  AS = Adult Services & Health  P = Place  C = Central Services   R = Resources   CS= Children's Services
SI To approve 

compensation 
payments

To approve compensation payments in relation to any 
complaint to the Council in excess of £1000.

n/a All TBC R - Iain Watters Private 
(1,2,3)

SI Acceptance of 
Tenders

To accept quotations, tenders, contract extensions and 
contract variations valued between £50k and £500k in their 
Portfolio Area where funding is previously included in Council 
budgets.

n/a Cllr Ian 
Edwards - 
Leader of the 
Council OR Cllr 
Martin Goddard 
- Finance / in 
conjunction 
with relevant 
Cabinet 
Member

TBC various Private (3)

SI All Delegated 
Decisions by Cabinet 
to Cabinet Members, 
including tender and 
property decisions

Where previously delegated by Cabinet, to make any 
necessary decisions, accept tenders, bids and authorise 
property decisions / transactions in accordance with the 
Procurement and Contract Standing Orders.

TBC All TBC various Public / 
Private 
(1,2,3)

SI External funding bids To authorise the making of bids for external funding where 
there is no requirement for a financial commitment from the 
Council.

n/a All TBC various Public

SI Response to key 
consultations that 
may impact upon the 
Borough

A standard item to capture any emerging consultations from 
Government, the GLA or other public bodies and institutions 
that will impact upon the Borough. Where the deadline to 
respond cannot be met by the date of the Cabinet meeting, the 
Constitution allows the Cabinet Member to sign-off the 
response.

TBC All TBC various Public

The Cabinet's Forward Plan is an official document by the London Borough of Hillingdon, UK

5

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Health and Social Care Select Committee – 21 February 2024 
Classification: Public 
 

WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Committee name  Health and Social Care Select Committee  

   

Officer reporting  Nikki O’Halloran, Democratic Services 

   

Papers with report  Appendix A – Work Programme 

 

Ward  All 

 

HEADLINES 
 
To enable the Committee to note future meeting dates and to forward plan its work for the current 
municipal year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Health and Social Care Select Committee considers the report and agrees any 
amendments.  

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
The meeting dates for the 2023/2024 municipal year were agreed by Council on 23 February 
2023 and are as follows:   

 

Meetings Room 

Tuesday 20 June 2023, 6.30pm (rescheduled from 15/06/23) CR5 

Thursday 20 July 2023, 6.30pm - CANCELLED CR5 

Wednesday 16 August 2023 (informal meeting) - 

Wednesday 13 September 2023, 6.30pm CR5 

Tuesday 10 October 2023, 6.30pm CR5 

Tuesday 21 November 2023, 6.30pm CR5 

Monday 18 December 2023, 6.30pm - CANCELLED CR6 

Tuesday 23 January 2024, 6.30pm CR5 

Wednesday 21 February 2024, 6.30pm CR5 

Tuesday 19 March 2024, 6.30pm CR5 

Tuesday 23 April 2024, 6.30pm - CANCELLED CR5 

Wednesday 22 May 2024, 6.30pm (rescheduled from 23/04/24) TBA 

 
At the Health and Social Care Select Committee meeting on 23 January 2024, it was agreed that 
the meeting on 23 April 2024 be cancelled and rescheduled for a date after the Annual Council 
meeting in May 2024.  After Members of the Committee provided their availability, the new 
meeting date had been set for Wednesday 22 May 2024.   
 
The meeting dates for the 2024/2025 municipal year were agreed by Council on 18 January 2024 
and are as follows:   

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



 

 
Health and Social Care Select Committee – 21 February 2024 
Classification: Public 
 

Meetings Room 

Wednesday 19 June 2024, 6.30pm TBA 

Wednesday 24 July 2024, 6.30pm TBA 

Wednesday 11 September 2024, 6.30pm TBA 

Tuesday 12 November 2024, 6.30pm TBA 

Thursday 23 January 2025, 6.30pm TBA 

Tuesday 25 February 2025, 6.30pm TBA 

Wednesday 19 March 2025, 6.30pm TBA 

Wednesday 23 April 2025, 6.30pm TBA 

 
Implications on related Council policies 
 
The role of the Select Committees is to make recommendations on service changes and 
improvements to the Cabinet, who are responsible for the Council’s policy and direction. 
 
How this report benefits Hillingdon residents 
 
Select Committees directly engage residents in shaping policy and recommendations and the 
Committees seek to improve the way the Council provides services to residents. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
None at this stage. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
None at this stage. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
NIL. 

Page 26



2024/25

June July (CANCELLED) August September October November
December 
(CANCELLED) January February March

April 
(CANCELLED) May

20 20 No meeting 13 10 21 18 23 21 19 23 22
Review A: CAMHS Referral Pathway
Topic selection / scoping stage
Witness / evidence / consultation stage Witness Session
Findings, conclusions and recommendations MOVED TO SEPTEMBER Findings Findings
Final review report agreement Final report
Target Cabinet reporting Cabinet

Review B: GPs
Single Meeting 

Review

Regular service & performance monitoring
Quarterly Performance Monitoring
Annual Report of Adult and Child Safeguarding Arrangements X
Carers Strategy Update (prior to Cabinet) MOVED TO SEPTEMBER X
Older People's Plan Update (prior to Cabinet) X
Mid-year budget / budget planning report (July/September) X
Cabinet's Budget Proposals For Next Financial Year (Jan) X
Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care X
Cabinet Forward Plan Monthly Monitoring X X X X X X X X

One-off information items
Scrutiny Introduction (Democratic Services)
Public Health Update
Care Act Update 
Autism Strategy Consultation MOVED TO OCTOBER X
Crisis Recovery House Update
Family Hubs X
Carer Support Services - Cabinet report (079) X
2023/25 BCF Section 75 Agreement - Cabinet report (111) X
Commissioning Model for delivery of health and social care services X

Health External Scrutiny
Police & Mental Health Attendance at A&E X
Phlebotomy Services Update
Hillingdon Health & Care Partners (HHCP)
CAMHS Update
Virtual GP Consultations Update
Mount Vernon Cancer Centre Strategic Review Update  
NWL Orthopaedic Inpatient Surgery Review 
Hillingdon Hospital Redevelopment Update
Health Updates MOVED TO SEPTEMBER X X X
Quality Accounts (outside of meetings) X

Past review delivery
Review of Children's Dental Services 2021/22 MOVED TO OCTOBER X
Making the Council more autism friendly 2020/21 MOVED TO OCTOBER X
GP Pressures MOVED TO OCTOBER

Assisted Living Technologies Review 2021/22 (dealt with offline) MOVED TO OCTOBER

  

Health & Social Care Select Committee

MULTI-YEAR WORK PROGRAMME 2022 - 2026

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 January 2024
	5 Health Service Provision in Hillingdon's Rural Areas
	6 Cabinet Forward Plan Monthly Monitoring
	Appendix
	Decision Forward List


	7 Work Programme
	Appendix
	Health & Social Care SC



